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ITEM NO. 1:

Akaku--Maui County Community Television, Inc.

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.c. 06-31 and 06-49)

CHAIR KANE: I would like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance Committee's community
meeting for East Maui. This is March 30, 2006. Good evening, Hana. Thank you for allowing
the Budget and Finance Committee meeting to join all of you here in Helene Hall. For the
record, we have members in attendance, the Vice-Chair of the committee, Mr. Hokama; as well
as Member Carroll from East Maui; from Molokai, Mr. Mateo; from Paia-Haiku-Makawao,
Mr. Molina; from Kahului, Mr. Pontanilla; and from the Up country region, Ms. Tavares; as well
as from Wailuku-Waikapu-W aihee, Member Kane. Excused from this evening's meeting is
Member Johnson from West Maui and Member Anderson from South Maui. Good evening,
Hana. A couple of things that we would like to share with you. First, we're here to ... uh ...
hear your comments and thoughts about the 2007 Mayor's Budget proposal, that this Budget and
Finance Committee received on March 15 th of this year. We are in the gathering of information
stages of the budget process and we are required by Charter to complete our process of the
Budget by May 31 st of this year. We are now in the middles stages of gathering information and
we will continue to go to other areas within the County to gather information from the
community. If you could please, if you haven't already signed up, we have the sign-up area in
the back there of the room. Make sure we'll get those sign-up sheets to us here. We will be
letting you know when you can come up to the microphone. The first thing we ask you to do is
please state your name for the record; and if you represent an organization, we'd like to know
that as well. If you have a cell phone or a pager, we'd appreciate if you'd tum that off or to the
silent mode. We will be providing you with a total of four minutes. At three minutes, our staff
will let you know that you're at the three-minute mark and you'll have an additional minute to
conclude your remarks. And ... uh ... if you reach four minutes and you hear the words "four
minutes" stated, please wrap your comments up. If you continue to go, then we will politely
interrupt you to let you know that you need to conclude your remarks. With that being said,
again, if you can please make your remarks to the committee here. Don't tum around and face
the crowd. We're the ones who are trying to gather that information from you, so we would like
to hear your comments. You are on record. So again, please state your name for the record.
With that, our first person signed up to testify is Sarai Stricklin. Ms. Stricklin will be followed
by Chuck Boerner.

. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MS. STRICKLIN: Aloha.
CHAIR KANE: You can adjust that, yeah. (NOTE: He s referring to the microphone stand.)
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MS. STRICKLIN: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: There you go. Thank you.
MS. STRICKLIN: Aloha, my name is Sarai Stricklin.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's not on.
CHAIR KANE: We go tum' em on. . .. (chuckled) ...
MS. STRICKLIN: Oh .... (laughter) . ..
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
MS. STRICKLIN: Sorry.... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MS. STRICKLIN: Well that took care of the nerves. Thank you. Thank you for coming to Hana,
everybody. I really appreciate this. Again, my name is Sarai Stricklin. I'm a mom. I'm an
artist and an ocean safety advocate ... and now, a co-owner of a small business here in Maui
County. I'm here tonight to thank you all for your continued efforts in providing lifeguard
services for here in Hana during the summer months. It's made a wonderful, wonderful
difference for our children. We're very grateful that we have them for three months out of the
year. I've noticed, as I drive by, there's like this whole gang of kids that just follow the
lifeguards around and learn from them. They are wonderful role models. It's like a healthy
atmosphere. In thanking you for this service that you've provided, I'd like for you to please
consider--mahalo for everything--if you could please consider the possibility of creating some
full-time positions. We would need four and a half full-time positions to provide ocean safety
services for our Hana district. I know that things are tight and in the past when we've asked, it
didn't work out; but I'd like to water that seed again, if I may. I was just speaking with Uncle
Stanley and some of the sisters in the bathroom and making sure that everybody's happy.
Everybody is so happy with the lifeguards and we really feel we deserve it. For the other nine
months out of the year, which are usually the more rougher time of the year. So with that note of
lifeguards, I now want to also thank you on behalf of MEO, the business development
corporation, especially the Core IV course that I've been able to attend. I work at the gallery
three days a week and for the other four days, I've been driving out and taking the Core IV class
from Susie Themen. I just want to share how important this class is for people like myself who
have dreams. I have a family of musicians. My children's father, Liko Martin, provided the
concept of creating a record company in 1993 at Iolani Palace; and it's now 2006, and we're
finally doing it. I just really want to ask you all to keep your benevolent efforts to provide
funding for the MEO business courses that are available and the alumni courses. Okay. Thank
you.

-3-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

March 30, 2006 (Hana)

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Stricklin. Members, any questions for Ms. Stricklin? Hearing none. Thank
you. Good to see you.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify (NOTE: He cleared his throat.)--excuse me--Chuck Boerner to be followed by
Fergus Flanagan.
MR. BOERNER: Thank you, members of the Council, for braving the elements and coming out here to
Hana, and not even wondering whether it was gonna rain, but just coming anyway, whether it
rains or not. We appreciate it. I'm here on behalf of the Maui County Farm Bureau and we want
to definitely thank you for your continued support and your support in the past. The farm bureau
has many, many programs and ... uh ... with your support and the Mayor's support, I feel
we're making lots of inroads into Maui agriculture (Maui Nui agriculture). So once again, thank
you very much and ... for your continued and support in the past. We're all working together
on this. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chuck. If you can, state your name for the record please.
MR. BOERNER: I'm sorry. Chuck Boerner, farmer in Kipahulu.
CHAIR KANE: Right on. Mr. Boerner, thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Boerner? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony this evening. Fergus Flanagan to be followed by Carl Lindquist.
MR. FLANAGAN: Good evening. I also want to thank the members of the committee for coming
down to Hana this evening. I also want to express appreciation in general for the work you're
doing on our behalf My name again is Fergus Flanagan. I'm a member of the board of Ohana
Makamae and I'm also a school teacher here in Hana. My reason for speaking to you tonight is
to express our appreciation for your support over the past five, six years. Ohana Makamae, as
you probably know, is a small nonprofit helping the families of East Maui and also particularly
focusing on both the children and the adults that have substance abuse difficulties. As a small
nonprofit in a small community, we're struggling each year to accomplish our goals and to meet
the needs of our community, and to have enough funding to do so. I just want to express
appreciation to you for the support you've given us in the past. I know our Executive Director,
Ray Henderson, has written a request for some consideration for this coming budget year. I
won't go into the detail of that but again, I appreciate very much all you've given to us in the
past. As a school teacher, Ohana Makamae has a direct impact on the children I work with at
school, and this year especially, we have a new program at school that is critically important to
our children and especially our middle school and high school kids, and it's all possible because
of the help you've given us in the past. So thank you, again, very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Flanagan. Members, any questions for Mr. Flanagan? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony. Carl Lindquist. Mr. Lindquist will be followed by Marti
Wukelic.
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MR. LINDQUIST: Good evening. I'm Carl Lindquist and I too thank you for coming out. In fact, I
wanted to thank you for something more than that. I wanted to thank you for the quality of life
that we enjoy in Hana because of the County workers out here. You have terrific people in
Hana. You really do, and I want you to know that. Your Public Works people, the Police, the
County ... uh ... the Council office here. I mean everybody that represents the County in this
town is just fabulous and they do a great job. You know, being way out here with the road
situation, the way we have it, with a lot of storms and so forth, I mean if the County crews
weren't as good as they are, it would make our lives a lot different and we really appreciate it. I
want to speak on behalf of Hale Hulu Mamo (the Hana Senior Center). I am privileged to be on
the advisory committee of that group, although I am speaking as a private citizen. Hale Hulu
Mamo in its short existence has added also a wonderful degree of happiness and health to the
senior citizens of this area in addition to providing their caregivers with some very much needed
respite. Again, thinking of where we are out here, if you're a caregiver and you have to go to
Kahului to do your big shopping and so forth, which we all have to do from out here; heretofore,
there was no place for ... uh ... a safe place to leave a senior while you did that or while you
did other chores that had to be done ... or frankly just took some time off, and Hale Hulu Mamo
has done a wonderful job in providing for that. I thank you for your past support and hope we
can continue to receive it.
I also wanted to speak on behalf of this building. I didn't hire the motorcycle that came by, that
did come by, but it gave you a pretty good idea of what can happen in here when there's
something going on. We're very fortunate through, partially through your support of the Maui
Arts & Cultural Center. We are able to get outreach programs here, at least three a year. We get
ballet. We get a wide variety of things. They come out here to entertain. They usually entertain
at the school and then they come here. The problem that we have here is: 1. it's as of sound;
2. you can't darken this room; 3. the light system and the sound system in here is pretty
inadequate. (NOTE: Someone dimmed the lights.)
ALL: ... (laughter) ...
MR. LINDQUIST: You know, generally, this building could use some help. Structurally, it's a fine
building and historically, it's our place; but it really could use some help. And if the opportunity
comes along to provide some upgrading of some of the elements in here, it would certainly be
worthwhile. Probably, the most drastic would be air-conditioning; but even ifthat were possible,
that would allow us to silence the building when we're having something going on in here. It
really is kind of embarrassing sometimes if you have a major group up here doing something and
the boom boxes are going by and you can't hear, and it's fairly distracting.
And finally, I would like to say that I understand that there's an opportunity that there may be
some, a fire extinguishing system going in to, a sprinkler system--I'm sorry--going into what you
call the community center and we call the old school. Again, I would urge you, if it comes
before you-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
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MR. LINDQUIST: --to ... uh ... to consider that because it is an old, old wooden building. It's very
important to our community. If we were to lose that building to a fire, it would have a drastic
effect on many of us out here. So thank you very much for coming to Hana.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Lindquist. Members, any questions for our testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you for your testimony. Next to testify is Marti Wukelic. Forgive me if I'm
mispronouncing your name. And following Ms. Wukelic is Geraldine Carroll.
MS. WUKELIC: Mahalo--and you did say it right. Aloha. Thank you for coming out. You have no
idea how much it means to us, when you do, when you make that trip down the Hana Highway,
so mahalo again. My name is Marti Wukelic. See, you said it right. I am here as both the Maui
Community College Hana Outreach Coordinator and a private citizen of East Maui. I'll explain
that in a minute. I'm here to discuss briefly a document requesting funding. It's called
"Charting A Co-responsible Course: A Plan To Address Workforce and Economic Development
and Diversification in Maui County". It's a very good document. MCC has some wonderful
ideas. They're looking to bring four-year programs in but to tell you the truth, I'm real narrow in
my focus and I'm only here to discuss how this is gonna affect Hana. Okay. As you know, we
tried ABIT Program (a four-year program) and it's working pretty well, and now they want to
bring in a few more. They want to bring in Advanced Nursing, Natural Sciences. They want to
collaborate with the college of education and the school of social work, and those are the two
programs I really want to talk about. I'll tell you a little bit about what I do for those of you who
don't know. Councilperson Carroll knows and supports us. The Hana Ed Center is basically two
rooms in the old school. Through these two rooms, we offer MCC classes via the two-way
communication live classes, internet, and cable tv. Something has happened in this community
in the last few years--I'm getting all choked up--but we have had as much as 60 students per
semester attend, which is pretty remarkable. I'm really proud of the students here. Through
these students, every semester, we've had at least one person graduate with an AA Degree and
wanting to go on. Now if these programs are expanded, that means that our Maui County East
Maui students can not only get an Associates Degree in Human Services (which leads into
Education) and in Social Work, but they can go on to the higher degrees. Now right now as we
stand, we have something like five or six Hana people who are now teachers at Hana School.
And as you know, we desperately need a way ... whole lot more of that. My average student is
30 years old, married, with kids, taking two or three credits per semester, and little by little, they
make it. I also have two students who are about to get certified in Social Work. And as you
know, the meth problem and all of that has left no community untouched, Hana included.
Because of this program, we will now have people in our community, who are born and reared
here, who's gonna be helping with this problem. If we are able to get these programs, they will
be able to do it right here from Hana. They will go on and get their Bachelor's Degree, and
they'll be able to take care of their own community. I know you have a lot of priorities.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
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MS. WUKELIC: I just think this is a dynamite proposal and I asked if! could speak. When I wrote my
little thing back there, I put that I'm representing my employer but also myself because I am just
so proud of what the people of this community have done education-wise. Also, for my own
personal agenda, in the back of the Budget, there is also a second full-time person penciled in for
Hana, which would mean a lot to me because so far, I'm a solo act. So I wish you the best. Take
it into consideration and mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Wukelic. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. Geraldine Carroll. Ms. Carroll will be followed by Scott Crawford.
MS. CARROLL: Thank you, Chair Kane and members of the Council. I'm here as a member of the
Hana Lani Club Senior Citizens of Hana. I want to thank you for the funding you've given
MEO, give us transportation to attend our meetings, and also for those on dialysis going over
three times a week to the other side, and going ... transportation to our senior center here in
Hana. It made a big difference having transportation for wheelchairs. We didn't have that
before. I've used it for my mom because it was hard for me to transport her into the car and to
the medical center; but with this transportation, it was easier for me ... and I ask you to continue
to support MEO.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Carroll, can you please state your name for the record?
MS. CARROLL: My name is Geraldine Carroll.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Carroll. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you for your
testimony. Scott Crawford. Mr. Crawford will be followed by Stacy Lynch.
MR. CRAWFORD: Good evening, members. Thank you for coming out to Hana. I have a few things I
want to touch on here real quick and ... urn . . . first, just as a private individual, I wanted to
support what Carl was saying about the Helene Hall and improvements here. I definitely think
that would be valuable. I also wanted to encourage your support for funding for the American
Ingenuity Alliance, which is related to the paper that I'm distributing. It's too complicated to try
and explain real quickly but you can look at that and get a little bit better idea, and it would give
Hawaii and Maui a real innovative role in the area of intellectual property, and via ... uh ... a
good source of economic diversification and development. It also could even relate to things like
independent music industry like Sarai was talking about here. So I'd encourage your support for
that.
And then ... urn ... putting on my hat as Executive Director of Kipahulu Ohana, I would like to
encourage support for the East Maui Cultural Preservation fund, which I believe you're
considering expanding or the Mayor has proposed expanding the Budget slightly this year. I
would support that. I think that ... uh ... specifically on the Muolea Point, which the County
purchased last year, we've been making progress in developing plans for the community
management of that property. We are hoping to be able to do an archaeological field school
there this summer that will involve local youth in doing oral history, collection, and some
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archival research related to the history of that property. And I believe that that's something that
could be funded out of that, you know, out of that fund for East Maui Cultural Preservation.
Also, the Kipahulu Ohana, we had in this last year's Budget $10,000 as a line item. I'm not sure
if that's in this year's Budget or not; but I think that ... urn ... I understand the value of putting
things into sort of a general pool for East Maui and then having some flexibility about where it
gets applied and just ... urn ... along with, for the Ohana, along with the work we've been
doing ... urn ... for years, as with, through a cooperative agreement with Haleakala National
Park, we have a couple of acres of ancient taro-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. CRAWFORD: --that we have restored in providing lots of opportunity for youth and visitors to
experience old Hawaii and also providing poi and things for the local community. Along with
that, we're also doing a project trying, hopefully, restoring a large fishing boat that would be
used for community purposes this year. We are partnering with Department of Land and Natural
Resources on a cooperative agreement for management of a parcel out in Kipahulu. We've also
played a real key role in the development of the Muolea plans and so we would appreciate the
opportunity to be able to apply for funding in that budget.
And then finally, real quick, I would like to just say that I support Ohana Makamae, the Hale
Hulu Mamo, and Hana Youth Center, and would encourage you to continue funding all of those.
Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Crawford. Hang on one second. Members, any questions for
Mr. Crawford? Seeing none. Thank you very much for your testimony. Stacy Lynch to be
followed by Uilani Phillips-Tehiva.
MS. LYNCH: My name is Stacy Lynch and I would like to thank you for coming in person to listen to
Hana's concerns and wish list, so to speak. I am a founding board member of Ohana Makamae
and Fergus did a great job of describing the organization. The organization was founded by
some ... uh ... started by some people in Hana, who felt like there was a real need in that area
for there were no drug counselors available, no places for people to get counseling for
alcoholism and anger-management classes, and it's just ... the whole family is encompassed.
It's really been a wonderful organization and the County has supported us from the very onset,
which has been great. I would like to thank you also for supporting the senior center and the
youth center. They're both extremely vital for this, for our community; and to say that they work
so nicely together--all three organizations. They really come together in a beautiful way. So
thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Lynch. Members, any questions? Seeing none. Thank you very
much. Uilani Phillips-Tehiva followed by John Blumer-Buell.
MS. PHILLIPS-TEHIV A: Aloha, Council members. Mahalo for coming all the way here and taking
time out of your busy schedule. My name is Uilani Phillips-Tehiva and I'm a worker at Ohana
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Makamae. I'm the Office Manager and have been working there for five years, I think. But I
would like to thank you for your support, for always considering us--Ohana Makamae. I feel
that Ohana Makamae is like a city hall. Well, I don't know really what it is but ... urn ... it's a
resource center, where community members come and try to find resources or answers to
problems or things that they need assistance with, you know, other than traveling to Kahului. So
we make it convenient for our community to come to one place and try to get the information
that they need. I am so thankful that we have Ohana Makamae. It gives me--a longtime resident
born and raised here in Hana--an opportunity to give back to my community. I am so thankful
for the services that they provide.
Also, I would like to thank you for your support in MEO YouthBank. My daughter has always
come up here. Her name is Poerava, and she's always come here to support. Right now, they're
in Molokai for a youth activity for the whole spring break; but if they were here, they would be
standing here right now. Because of your continued support, and consideration, and funding,
three of my children are in there now. I hope that this program continues because it's a very
good program for our youths. It gives them something to do, learn, learn about life skills and job
skills.
Also, MEO Transportation. I've heard so much good comments about our transportation.
Taking our kupunas, not only kupunas, but our young people, those that have doctors'
appointments and because of the cost of gas and transporting back and forth, this has made it so
convenient. I thank you again for that support.
Thank you for your support with Hale Hulu Mamo and I hope that when I get to that age that
Hale Hulu Mamo will still be there.
Thank you for supporting the Hana Youth Center, for the programs that they have for our youths.
I'm also on--I don't know--a volunteer with the Paanimai Playground project. That I'm part of
planning committee and so we are working hard trying to fund-raise some money and so if you
can always consider Paanimai Park as part of the Budget.
Also, Ma Ka Hana Ike is with Rick Rutiz. If you go around Hana, you can see the many
buildings that they've built and the skills that these students have learned, hands-on building,
constructing, and I think now that they have gotten that skills, they can build their own house.
Before I close and sit down, I would like to thank all of you. The ending part of last year, I had a
concern about our pine tree that runs from the Japanese Church-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. PHILLIPS-TEHIVA: --to Hamoa. I wrote a letter and I sent it to our Council members and our
Parks and Rec. and I'm so thankful for the fast action that they went into and people ... uh ...
the men came and cut the tree down because it was so infested with termites, and so I was so
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afraid, and I just would like to thank you guys for just listening to us. And thank you again for
your support. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tehiva. Members, any questions for our testifier? Hearing none.
Thank you very much. Next to testify is John Blumer-Buell. He'll be followed by Ray
Henderson.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Aloha, Council members and thanks for coming out today. I do try to watch
all your hearings on the Budget on Akaku. I appreciate your questions. You guys know the
devil's in the detail and I want to give Riki particular accolades for that. Sometimes, he really
goes into the details that are important. So I've submitted a letter to you, which has a total of
eleven items on it. They're big items and they're mostly capital improvements. I hope you'll
take the time to really read them and if you have questions, you're welcome to call me or have
Bob's office call me because I try to shoot straight with the information. So ... um ... I'm just
gonna go through a few of'em and hopefully, if you have questions, you'll get back to me.
First of all, I just want to express a general concern about the overall Budget and the property tax
assessment system. Right now, we have possible excessive debt bond obligations and a large
carryover. As you know, the property tax system may be changed through a Charter amendment.
If that happens then all assumptions regarding future income are uncertain. The Mayor and the
Council have not done the requested baseline studies of different property tax scenarios,
acquisition-based assessments versus market-value assessments on which to base those
decisions. So I know Bill Tavares and Tony Fisher have been talking to you. If it's possible, I
would like to see you take a proactive approach on that before it gets to initiative because if it
goes that far, there's gonna be ... I have a feeling it will be more restrictive than anybody wants
to see. The picture that I put at the start is a picture of the Hana mining operation up above
(Kaeleku). I attached that in a letter dated April 20, 2004, which the Department of Public
Works has never answered. It is directly related to the Hana Landfill acquisition. There's a real
possibility the Hana dump needs to be closed. This letter raises the implications. It really raises
a full scope of implications for the entire Public Works Department out here, and I'm not
questioning the people out here at all. I agree with Carl Lindquist. We have great people out
here. I think there's a lot of misdirection coming from the Administration. Water issues, the
important one that I see is the Hamoa to Koali Waterline replacement. I did not find Segment-2
of the, or the Koali Waterline in the Fiscal Year 2007 Budget, ... (end of tape, start 1B @
6:34 p.rn.) . .. and we need to know what the status of this project is. The Director of the
Department of Water Supply will not answer our certified letters. It's very frustrating. All the
community association has been trying to get them to do is follow the law and do an
environmental assessment. It appears now that it's been removed from the-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --Budget. I just want to go through a few of 'em. Kipahulu Firestation, I
don't think is worth funding and there's justifications. I talk about the West Maui Watershed.
Another water issue is the bridge issues. I request open space funds for land in Hana, support the
- 10-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

March 30, 2006 (Hana)

road paving, and I ask you to really consider No. 11, the Hana Baseyard Drainage Channel
Improvements and Hana Baseyard Improvements. We talked about redoing that whole
compound years ago and one of the considerations was to move everything to the dump road. So
it's a lot of money that I see ($10.3 million) in the capital expenditures. I'm just asking you to
take a hard look at that and-MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --of course, I support the new baseyard, but let's make the right decision. So,
thanks a lot.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can please, Mr. Blumer-Buell, state your name for the record.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: John Blumer-Buell from Muolea.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Blumer-Buell? If not, thank you,
Mr. Blumer-Buell, for the extensive information that you've passed on to the committee.
MR. HENDERSON: Aloha, Council members.
CHAIR KANE: Hang on. Hang on one second, Mr. Henderson. Next, we have Mr. Ray Henderson
followed by Lehua Cosma. Go ahead.
MR. HENDERSON: Aloha. I'm Raymond Henderson, citizen in Hana and also Executive Director of
Ohana Makamae. I wanted to thank each of you for being here tonight and also to wear a few
hats. As far as being a member of this community, I fully support Hale Hulu Mamo. They're
doing a great job with our kupuna. The youth center is actively involved in helping our youth, as
well as the youth bank (MEO YouthBank). It's been great to have transportation. Those dialysis
patients that need to get out to the hospital and have dialysis once, twice, or three times a week,
have that now through MEO Transportation. I fully support Kipahulu Ohana and also,
hopefully, if you can, really think about renovating this building. It is the central hub of cultural
activity for Hana and as Carl Lindquist was saying, it's a little bit frustrating sometimes to be
here with people who are professionals, who are trying to deliver a presentation and it's hard to
hear, and it gets really, really hot in the summer. So ... urn ... as the board president of
Ma Ka Hana Ike, we want to thank you for your support. Our boys and girls in the building and
trades program are learning a lot. We've graduated more than 20 students, who can go right into
the carpentry trade here in Hana and the building and trades profession. It's been very helpful.
Not only have we built nice buildings but the community takes pride. The kids take pride and
it's been a wonderful experience. For Ohana Makamae, thank you for your support. We've been
in business now for seven years and we continue to tackle the issues related to substance abuse.
With your help, we've opened outpatient treatment here. We have contracted fully as a partner
with Aloha House and Hina Mauka and with Hoomau Keola on Oahu. We've been, through
your funding, been able to leverage money from the State and we've opened a full outpatient
treatment service at the high school. As we look to the future as an organization, the County
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money is extremely valuable in leveraging. We think right now we can leverage almost three or
four to one, with the dollars that we're getting from the County, with Federal and State funds. So
I really appreciate your consideration in that regard. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aloha.
MR. HENDERSON: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Today, we were discussing grants for the Human Concerns
Department and we noticed that there is a line item request of $90,000.
MR. HENDERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could you explain ... or have you sent materials to us about what is
that program?
MR. HENDERSON: It is the same exact program. This is the first year we've asked to be moved to
that side of the budget. We submitted a proposal that is an identical proposal that we submitted
as a CPG funding grant as well. So you do have all the information. It's for our substance abuse
outpatient treatment service. We wrote on our CPG grant, right on the front page, if we do ...
are able to move to the line item, that we will relinquish the CPG grant and take it off the table.
We just didn't want to be caught short and not have support with our line item and then all of a
sudden not have written a grant. Because it's a two-year cycle, we would have left ourselves out
of a two-year cycle of funding. So that's why we had those two.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
Grants Committee?

So you have an application

with the Community Partnership

MR. HENDERSON: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. HENDERSON: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So you are gonna pursue that?
MR. HENDERSON: Well, no. We basically, we didn't want to leave ourselves short.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, I didn't want to ask that as a question.
MR. HENDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It should be a statement.
MR. HENDERSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You should pursue that because that process is before we make our
final decisions.
MR. HENDERSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And ... uh ... see, we don't have that information at all. It's in
Human Concerns. It doesn't automatically come to us.
MR. HENDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So it's ... what ... were you in ... uh ... ? Okay. You have gotten
Community Partnership Grants in the past?
MR. HENDERSON: That's correct. That's how we've been ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: For seven years?
MR. HENDERSON: No, for five.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: For five years?
MR. HENDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So ... uh ... I think that probably, you know, Mr. Chair.
They're gonna let the Community Partnership Grant applicants know that they should be
pursuing them first because their process is going on now.
MR. HENDERSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And then usually, it's after. We're like the last-ditch effort, rather
than the first ditch. . .. (chuckled) ...
MR. HENDERSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
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MR. HENDERSON: All right. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Henderson? Hearing none. Thank you for your
testimony this evening. Up next is Lehua Cosma. She'll be followed by Joylynn Oliveira.
MS. COSMA: Aloha and thank you for coming out to Hana. My name is Lehua Cosma and I've been
actively involved in trying to bring dialysis to Hana. First of all, I would just like to say thank
you very much for your continuous support, especially with the MEO Transportation. Although
my mother cannot utilize that service, I see it helping out others and I'm very much appreciative
of it. I hope to see it continue. We also have another dialysis patient, who cannot utilize that
service right now due to time constraints and different times of their dialysis appointments and
other health issues. But what I would like to request and just to have you take into consideration
that if we can have at least some of those fundings stay here in Hana, so that we can start
something, so that our dialysis patients can have that service here in Hana. We've had
... urn ... two possible providers who have recently come forward, that wanted to come out to
Hana to meet with me and the organization that I'm involved with, which is Hui Laulima; but
there was no possible site to have it. Another suggestion that came about was a grant to Hui
Laulima for Dr. Howell's old residence in Wakiu, which is the logical location for our dialysis
center, that could be run by Liberty or some other qualified medical organization. The Mayor
has not cooperated in helping the community acquire this County-owned building, which is
currently used by a private entity. So that is something I wish for you to take into consideration
that could be a possible site as well as maybe the Council office. Before Dr. Moser, Steven
Moser's passing, he looked at the office because we had our dialysis meeting there and he saw it
as a potential place for it. So these are what we're working on right now; but at the County level,
I would like to ask for your support, so that our patients don't have to take that dangerous
highway three times a week. They can be here. We've been having almost 40 days of rain,
landslide, trees, and everyday that they drive out, I fear for their safety . . . for anybody who
takes the road. Now, my dad takes my mom. He's retired from the County. He has to carry a
power saw in the car because there were several times he had to get out and move the trees in the
rain, which is 2:30 in the morning, when they leave Hana, for her 5 o'clock appointment in the
morning. There were boulders come down. It's just safety issues that I'm looking at and I feel
Hana is long overdue for this kind of service and-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. COSMA: --let's start now. With your support, I think we can make it happen. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Cosma, for your comments. Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for being here. How many patients do you have
here in Hana that require dialysis treatment?
MS. COSMA: Right now, we have four patients. But through ... urn ... we had a survey done in,
through the Public Health Nursing and there's a possible 120 candidates, who are potential to
dialysis. So I am looking at, not only now, but in the near future, so that we can have it here
because ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Who are they working with?
MS. COSMA: And that's how much we have--four.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Who are they working with?
MS. COSMA: But we did lose 10-12 lives within ten years time and pretty much from just giving up. It
wasn't from the dialysis, but they were tired of going back and forth and not having it here.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Who are you working with right now to get the dialysis?
MS. COSMA: Liberty.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Who?
MS. COSMA: Liberty. They're the ones that brought out St. Francis. And then ... urn ... I was
contacted by--I cannot pronounce his name--but from Knoxville, Tennessee--who mentioned that
he came to Hana in December of 2005. He's a nephrologist for our consultant up in Knoxville,
Tennessee, who also said that he wanted to come to Hana. And they have four medical doctors
right now, who work plenty, that could come out on a monthly basis to service our people. They
wanted to fly out and meet me and the Hui Laulima organization to see what possible site they
can start it on; but that's just a start, and we need more support than that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Who's ...
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Who's the group you're working with in Hana? Or is it
just you?
MS. COSMA: No, I have Hui Laulima. We call ourselfHui Laulima. We started two years ago on this
dialysis.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Hui Laulima?
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MS. COSMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And have you presented any of this to ... uh ... is there an advisory
committee in Hana?
MS. COSMA: We've been to several meetings in Hana on this issue.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. COSMA: And Dr. Steven Moser was in this organization before his passing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. COSMA: So there's several of us.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: All right, thank you.
MS. COSMA: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Cosma, if I can ask you a favor?
MS. COSMA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: I've conferred with our Council Chair. If by chance, you can bring whatever information that
you have to our Office of Council Services to either Dawn Lono or Keala Lono at the office, and we can
have that information forwarded over to the central office in the County building, so we can have more
information to try and make some assistance for you.
MS. COSMA: Thank you.
KANE: Okay.
MS. COSMA: I will.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Next to testify is Joylynn Oliveira. She'll be followed by Sam Akoi III.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Good evening, everyone. Aloha mai kakou. It's wonderful to be in front of you
again here in Hana. I spent part of my childhood growing up in Keanae. I was one of the very
fortunate people to be able to do that and I get the best of both worlds, living up in Kula also.
But I just was wondering, as you guys drove into Hana today, did you have a chance to notice
the scenery, to take a look around, look at the beautiful waterfalls that are running now, and also
take a look at the beautiful rainforest that we have. If you did, then you may have also noticed
Wailuanui Falls that is right after Wailua. It's a beautiful waterfall but you probably never
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thought that just 50 feet off of that cliff, there is a Miconia tree growing right there. In fact, there
are several that are only accessible via helicopters. I work with the Maui Invasive Species
Committee. We have six full-time workers that are going up into the mountains here in East
Maui to fight Miconia. They hike miles everyday and I give them credit for what they do
because I go out there sometimes and I'm keggin [sic} all the way up there in the hills .
. . . (chuckled) . .. But ... urn ... Miconia is definitely threatening this community and we are
happy that we're able to provide jobs to the local residents here as well as there's some local
residents from Hana or Keanae that are working with us in our Makawao office. Everyday, they
are out there fighting Miconia. There's almost 37,000 acres in East Maui that potentially can
have Miconia growing in it. Maui Invasive Species Committee has been receiving lots of funds
from the County and we've always appreciated it. Unfortunately, though, this year, one of our
major contributors from the national park service is unable to assist us, so we have a downfall in
our budget, and we look to the County to help support us in that. Any help that you can give to
us would be really great to help support the community as well as ... urn ... we have one other
part-time person that does administrative work. It's really important what they do because they
help educate the community. Every person in this community has been touched by Miconia,
either through their family or through their yards; and by you supporting them, we can make sure
that the next time you come to Hana, you're not seeing the Miconia trees just growing on the
side of the road. Or hopefully, one of these days, it doesn't become what we call a monotypic
forest, where it's only Miconia ... as what's happened in Tahiti. So mahalo for your time and
please support Maui Invasive Species Committee's Miconia project.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can, state your name for the record.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Joylynn Oliveira.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Oliveira. Members, any questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. How much is the ... uh ... are you not gonna have because you're
missing a partner now?
MS. OLIVEIRA: We are looking at several sources to raise $350,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's what they had been giving in the past--the National Park Service--is
it?
MS. OLIVEIRA: I don't have the exact figure. What part of that $350,000 is contributed by the park
service but I would say a large portion of that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could you find out and then-MS. OLIVEIRA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --let our Hana office know, and then they can forward that to us?
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MS. OLIVEIRA: Definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, members? Hearing none. Ms. Oliveira, thank you very much.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Sam Akoi III.
MR. AKOI: Aloha. I think Joy said it all, so I'm just gonna say a few things. My name is Sam Akoi
and I'm the manager of the Hana Miconia group. It's not an army; it's a group. We are called
... uh ... it's just six of us. We've been working, like Joy said, 30,000 acres. We do a lot in
that amount of time. And I'm not saying we're winning the battle. And I'm not saying we're
losing the battle; but we got a could control of the ... whatever we're doing, you know. So I
guess Joy said it all and then ... uh ... well, I would like to thank the Council for the support
you gave us all through these years. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Akoi. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you for your
testimony. Folks, that was the last person signed up to testify. If there's anybody in the room
that has not testified that would like to testify, please feel free to come forward now; and then,
we'll have you sign up after you are done. State your name for the record, please.
MS. LONO: My name is Dawn Lono and I'm here speaking on behalf of myself and supporting
projects in Hana. The first project that's near and dear to my heart for many years is the Maui
Flower Growers Association. I am a flower farmer. We have gotten funds in the past for the
association and what we are needing right now is funding for cultivar research, propagation and
distribution of those new product when we define new cultivars in our industry. It is really
important for us to be able to compete in the worldwide industry of flowers. So we need to have
continual research done for cultivars, so we would appreciate any assistance you could provide
for us in that. The youth center, Ohana Makamae, the Paanimai Park project, the lifeguards,
those are all worthy projects in Hana and very necessary. Hale Hulu Mamo is a wonderful,
wonderful program here for our kupuna and so many people are blessed by that project and
touched by it, and we need to continue that and we hope for your continued support. The Maui
Invasive Species, I mean that is a real problem throughout of course all of Hawaii; but Maui
County especially is having some problems with the wili wili, and the wasps, and you know, all
of those things are happening, so we need to support those kinds of projects. One of the biggest
concerns, however, in Hana is affordable housing. And as you know, land has been donated by
Hana Ranch and we are continually looking for funding so that we can get that project off the
ground. The land is there. It's stuck also in the planning process, and the zoning, and the
subdividing and all of that, and there's a lot going on there; but we need funding for our
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affordable housing project. We are desperate, desperate in this community for housing. And
... uh ... the fire sprinkler system for the Hana Community Center is essential. If we lose that
building because of a small fire that starts, that somebody isn't able to get on top of immediately,
it would be just a huge waste and a crime, and replacement of that building would be an
enormous cost. So compared to replacement and having a preventative measure, I would like to
support that project. I am concerned about what I see in the Budget for the Planning Department
and I'm concerned continually about land use enforcement issues, and we just do not have
enforcement in this County for the land use laws. It's causing far reaching problems and I have
talked to the Mayor and the Administration about adding to the Budget and adding, you know,
the essential personnel to make this happen. I don't really, looking through the Budget, I
couldn't really tell ifthere were personnel being added this year for that; but boy, that is a really
big puka that we have in our Administration. And also, I would really like to support the
continuation-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. LONO: --of our road repaving. And especially with all this rain we just had, the roads ... urn ...
the County road going in that direction (which you didn't have the honor of traveling on today, if
you did drive in) really needs some attention. I know the bridges are gonna be worked on and so
on and so forth but the roads are really, really taking a beating with all the thousands of tourist
cars that come across that road everyday, and we need to be paying some critical attention to
maintaining it. Because otherwise, you get into a situation where it's a catastrophe rather than,
you know, a preventative maintenance issue. So our roads, our signage (our park signage and
our community signage) is really poor and faded and ugly and an embarrassment to our
community. So I don't know how to get that taken care of but, you know, unfortunately, it's
gonna be dark when you leave; but if you could see the signage or if you noticed it when you
came in today, it's in very poor condition and it would be great to see that be taken care of.
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MS. LONO: And ... uh ... how long are you gonna let me go on?
CHAIR KANE: You're done.
MS. LONO: I'm done .... (chuckled) ... Oh, dam! I will put this in writing to you though and get it
to you in the future.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Lono. We'll accept that definitely as far as in writing.
MS. LONO: Okay.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
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CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions for Ms. Lono? Hearing none. Thank you very much. Is there
anybody else who has not testified and has not signed up? And Ms. Lono, we do need you to sign up by
the way, yeah. Thank you. Anybody else? Going twice.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MA and JJ)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: Hana, we want to thank you for allowing us to come into the community and hear your
thoughts regarding the proposed Budget. Weare gonna be going to other places throughout the
County, including Molokai, Lanai, Kahului, Wailuku, and we also have meetings everyday
(every morning) pretty much every morning that is live on Akaku. It starts at 9 0' clock and we
usually end between 3:30 and 4:30 in the afternoon. So if you are interested in following us, we
would be more than happy to continue hearing your thoughts regarding the process. With that,
from all of us to all of you, mahalo again for allowing us to be here. This meeting for
March 30, 2006 is adjourned.
ADJOURN: 6:57 p.m.
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